
 

Page 1  

Notice of Meeting  
 

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
DECISION MAKING MEETING  

 

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive  
Wednesday, 9 
January 2013 at 
3.30 pm 

Room 107, County Hall, 
Kingston upon Thames, 
Surrey KT1 2DN 
 

Anne Gowing 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 8541 9938 
 
anne.gowing@surreycc.gov.uk 

David McNulty 
 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9068, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
anne.gowing@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 
This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Anne Gowing on 020 
8541 9122. 
 
Leader of the Council:  Mr David Hodge 

 

 AGENDA 
 

P A R T  O N E  -  I N  P U B L I C 
 

 

1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from 
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting. 
 
Notes: 

• In line with the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) 
Regulations 2012, declarations may relate to the interest of the 
member, or the member’s spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom the member is living as husband or wife, or a person with whom 
the member is living as if they were civil partners and the member is 
aware they have the interest. 

• Members need only disclose interests not currently listed on the 
Register of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests. 

• Members must notify the Monitoring Officer of any interests disclosed 
at the meeting so they may be added to the Register. 

• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

 

2  PROCEDURAL MATTERS 
 
 

 



 
Page 2  

2a  Members' Questions 
 
The deadline for Member’s questions is 12pm four working days before 
the meeting (3 January 2013). 

 

2b  Public Questions 
 
The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (2 
January 2013). 
 

 

2c  Petitions 
 
The deadline for petitions is 14 days before the meeting. 

 

3  CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECKS FOR MEMBERS 
 
Following changes to the legislative framework, to agree policy in relation 
to criminal records checks for Cabinet Members and make 
recommendations to Council in relation to other Council positions. 
 

(Pages 1 
- 6) 

 
David McNulty 

Chief Executive 
Published: 20 December 2012 

 

QUESTIONS, PETITIONS AND PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

 
The Cabinet will consider questions submitted by Members of the Council, members of the 
public who are electors of the Surrey County Council area and petitions containing 100 or 
more signatures relating to a matter within the Cabinet’s terms of reference, in line with the 
procedures set out in the Council’s Constitution. 
 

Please note: 
1. The number of public questions which can be asked at a meeting may not exceed six. 

Questions which are received after the first six will be held over to the following meeting 
or dealt with in writing at the Chairman’s discretion. 

2. Questions will be taken in the order in which they are received. 
3. Questions will be asked and answered without discussion. The Leader, Deputy Leader 

or Cabinet Member may decline to answer a question, provide a written reply or 
nominate another Member to answer the question. 

4. Following the initial reply, one supplementary question may be asked by the questioner. 
The Leader, Deputy Leader or Cabinet Member may decline to answer a supplementary 
question. 

 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY – ACCEPTABLE USE 

 

All mobile devices (mobile phones, BlackBerries, etc) should be switched off or placed in 
silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions and interference with the PA and 
Induction Loop systems. 
 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use mobile devices in silent 
mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of the meeting. This 
is subject to no interruptions, distractions or interference with the PA and Induction Loop 
systems being caused. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be switched off in these 
circumstances.  

Thank you for your co-operation 
 



SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

DATE:  9 JANUARY 2013 

REPORT OF: ANN CHARLTON, HEAD OF LEGAL AND 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

SUBJECT: CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECKS FOR MEMBERS 

 

KEY ISSUE/DECISION: 

 
Following changes to the legislative framework, to agree policy in relation to criminal 
records checks for Cabinet Members and make recommendations to Council in 
relation to other Council positions.   
 

DETAILS: 

 
Changes to Legislation 
 
1. Criminal records checks are now administered by the Government’s 

Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) which took over responsibility from the 
Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) on 1 December 2012. Consequently, CRB 
checks are now referred to as DBS checks.  Under the relevant legislation, 
Members are not able to engage in a “regulated activity” without an enhanced 
criminal records check having been carried out and received  which indicates 
the person is not on either the children’s or adults’ barred lists. 
 

2. Until recently, the regulated activities so far as Members were concerned 
included: 

− Being a member of the Cabinet. 

− The discharge by a Member of any education or social services functions 
of the authority.  

− The opportunity for contact with children, including any contact when 
visiting a school or children's home if a Member frequently carries out an 
activity there.   

− The opportunity for contact with vulnerable adults when visiting a care 
home if the Member frequently carries out an activity there.  

− Being a school governor. 
 
3. The Protection of Freedoms Act amended the definitions of regulated activity 

on 10 September 2012, reducing the numbers of roles requiring a criminal 
records check.  Under the new definition, the only obvious situation where  
Members would still as a matter of law require a valid DBS check would be if 
they are carrying out  the following regulated activity: 

− Having unsupervised contact with children when visiting a school or 
children's home if a Member frequently carries out a relevant activity 
there.   

 

Item 3

Page 1



4. A “relevant activity” is defined as one of the following unsupervised activities: 
teaching, training, instructing, caring for or supervising children, or providing 
advice / guidance on well-being, or driving a vehicle only for children.  The 
frequency of contact referred to is at any time on 4 or more days in a period of 
30 days.   

 
The Council’s Policy 

 
5. Based on the above changes to the legislation, the Council cannot as a 

matter of law insist that Members are not on the “barred lists” by having a 
DBS check before becoming a Cabinet Member or making any decisions in 
relation to education or social services functions.   

 
6. However, the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act regulations have been amended 

to allow discretion for the Council still to carry out enhanced checks on 
individuals who were covered by the definitions of regulated activities for 
children and adults that existed prior to 10 September 2012.  The Council can 
still therefore carry out checks on Cabinet Members and on councillors 
discharging social services and education functions.   

 
7. Given this discretion, the possible options for DBS checks for Members 

undertaking certain roles and functions are considered below in turn. 
 
8. Members  
 
8.1. Whilst the Council cannot require any Member to undertake an enhanced 

DBS check, it is felt that requesting Members to do so  is consistent with the 
Council’s safeguarding duties, as well as being supportive of the Council’s 
and individual Councillor’s role as a corporate parent.  It would also provide 
individual Councillors with reassurance when dealing with constituents, where 
they may have to deal with issues relating to vulnerable adults and children. 
 

8.2. It is recommended that Members be encouraged to undertake an enhanced 
DBS Check to ensure that they are able to carry out regulated activities 
should they arise as part of their community leadership role and as a 
commitment to their role as a Corporate Parent and to support the Council’s 
policies to safeguard children and vulnerable adults. 
 

8.3. If a Member chooses not to undertake a DBS Check, it would not prevent 
them from making decisions (for example at County Council or Local 
Committee meetings) relating to the discharge of education or social services 
functions of the authority. However, they would not be able to have 
unsupervised contact with children when visiting a school or children's home, 
if frequently carrying out a relevant activity there.   

 
9. Leader of the Council  
 
9.1. The Leader of the Council is ultimately responsible for all executive decisions 

of the Council and as such, is involved in a range of decisions impacting on 
the services provided to children and vulnerable adults.  In addition, the 
Leader of the Council plays a key role in ensuring the Council delivers its 
responsibilities as a Corporate Parent and in demonstrating his support for 
the Council’s commitment to safeguarding children and vulnerable adults.  In 
undertaking the role of Leader, the Member will frequently come into contact 

Page 2



with children and vulnerable adults and therefore may undertake regulated 
activities as part of the role.     
 

9.2. To ensure adequate safeguards are in place, it is recommended that the 
Constitution is amended to make it clear that the Leader will be appointed by 
Council subject to a valid enhanced DBS check. 

 
10. Cabinet Members 
 
10.1. In line with the role of the Leader, Cabinet Members will be involved in a 

number of decisions that directly impact on the services delivered to children 
and vulnerable adults.   Depending on their portfolio, they could also have a 
statutory responsibility as Lead Member for Children or Adults, as well as be 
asked to chair the Corporate Parenting Board where safeguarding is crucial.   
Given the broad nature of a Cabinet Member’s portfolio, there is potential for 
Cabinet Members to need to carry out regulated activities.  
 

10.2. To ensure that Cabinet Members are not restricted from carrying out their role 
and are able to provide effective leadership on behalf of the Council in its role 
as Corporate Parent, and in demonstrating commitment to the need for 
safeguarding children and vulnerable adults it is recommended that the 
Constitution is amended to make it clear that the Leader will appoint the 
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Members subject to a valid enhanced DBS 
check. 

 
11. Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Council  
 
11.1. As the civic leadership of the Council, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman will 

spend a considerable amount of their time interacting with the community, 
partner organisations as well as the voluntary, community and faith sectors.   
This will inevitably bring them into contact with local residents and service 
users, including children and vulnerable adults on a frequent basis.  
 

11.2. In order to ensure that the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are not restricted 
from carrying out their role, and to demonstrate their commitment to the 
Council’s policies of safeguarding children and vulnerable adults it is 
recommended that the Constitution is amended to make it clear that the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council will be appointed by Council 
subject to a valid enhanced DBS check. 

 
12. Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Select Committees 
 
12.1. As Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen of Adult Social Care, children and families and 

education select committees are, by the very nature of their roles, dealing with 
the social care and education functions of the Council, it is important the 
public have confidence in their suitability for these responsibilities and a 
requirement to have a DBS check before appointment is likely to strengthen 
this. Their role will inevitably bring them into contact with local residents and 
service users, including children and vulnerable adults, and are likely to 
include visits to children’s homes, schools and care homes.   
 

12.2. In order to ensure that the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of these select 
committees are not restricted from carrying out their role, it is therefore 
recommended that the Constitution is amended to make it clear that the 
Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Adult Social Care, Children and Families 

Page 3



and Education Select Committees will be appointed by the Council subject to 
a valid enhanced DBS check. 
 

13. Until the recent changes a new check was required every three years. It is 
recommended that this same frequency should continue for the time being. A 
new arrangement to be able to check on-line whether there have been any 
changes since a criminal records certificate was issued is in the process of 
being developed and the Government hope to have this available in 2013.  

 
Consultation 
 
14. The Chief Executive and HR have been consulted and are supportive of the 

proposed recommendations.    
 
Financial and value for money implications  

 
15. An enhanced DBS check costs £44. Therefore, it would cost £3,520 to 

provide checks for the full council. This cost could be met from the current 
budget for DBS checks.   

 
Equalities implications 
 
16. There are no direct equalities implications.  

 
Legal implications/legislative requirements 

 
17. The Protections of Freedoms Act 2012 introduces new definitions for a 

regulated activity and therefore Members are no longer required by law to 
have a criminal records check in order to be a member of the Cabinet or 
discharge any education or social services functions of the authority.   This 
report looks to clarify the Council policy in relation to these checks for 
Members.  

 
Corporate Parenting/Looked After Children implications 

 
18. As the County Council is Corporate Parent to any children in its care, all 

Members have a role to play to ensure that this responsibility is taken 
seriously and Cabinet Members in particular have a decision-making role 
which could impact on the lives of looked after children.  Ensuring adequate 
safeguarding processes are in place shows the Council’s commitment to its 
role as a Corporate Parent and supports best practice in this area. 

 
Section 151 Officer commentary 
 
19. The Section 151 Officer confirms that all material, financial and business 

issues and risks have been considered / addressed. 
 

Page 4



RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
It is recommended that the Leader of the Council:  
 
1. Agrees that appointments of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Members will be 

made subject to the Member having a valid enhanced criminal records check. 

2. Encourages all Members to undertake an enhanced criminal records check as 
part of their role as a Corporate Parent. 

3. Recommends to Council that the Constitution is amended to make it clear that 
the following positions will be appointed by the Council subject to a valid 
enhanced criminal records check: 

o Leader of the Council 

o Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Council 

o Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Adult Social Care, Children and 
Families and Education Select Committees  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
To clarify the Council’s policy in relation to criminal records checks for Members and 
ensure appropriate safeguarding processes are in place. 
 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
The guidance for Members on criminal records checks will be updated and circulated 
along with notice that a report will go to Council in March recommending that the 
Constitution be updated to include a valid enhanced criminal records check as a 
requirement for certain council positions. 
 

 
Contact Officer: 
Rachel Crossley, Democratic Services Lead Manager 
Tel: 0208 541 9993      
Email: rachel.crossley@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
Sources/background papers: 
None 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECKS FOR MEMBERS

